
Essential Services Advisory Board Agenda Page 1 

Town of Ponce Inlet 
ESSENTIAL SERVICES ADVISORY BOARD 

AGENDA 
THURSDAY TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
MARCH 5, 2026 - 5:30 PM 4300 S ATLANTIC AVE, PONCE INLET, FL 

SUNSHINE LAW NOTICE FOR BOARD MEMBERS – Notice is hereby provided that one or more 
members of the Town Council or other Town Boards may attend and speak at this meeting. 

A complete copy of the materials for this agenda is available for review at the Town Hall. 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

3. ROLL CALL & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM. 

4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA. 

5. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES. 

A. January 8, 2026. 

6. OLD BUSINESS. 

A. Review and Recommendation of Capital Budget Priorities for FY 26/27: 

1. Police Department 

  2. Fire Department 

  3. Public Works Department 

7. NEW BUSINESS: None. 

8. REPORT OF STAFF. 

A. Fire Department – Chief Scales, Public Safety Director 
B. Public Works – Mr. Dunlap, Interim Public Works Director 
C. Police Department – Chief Glazier, Police Chief 
D. Board Liaison – Ms. Cherbano, HR Director/Town Clerk 

9. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION. 

10. ADJOURNMENT. 

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Essential Services Advisory Board with respect to any matter 
considered at a meeting, they will need a record of the proceedings and to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made at their own expense. Persons who require an accommodation to attend this meeting should 
contact the Clerk’s office at 386-236-2150 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting date to request such assistance. 



 
 

 

 
Report to Essential Services Advisory Board 

 
Topic:    Approval of Meeting Minutes. 

 
Summary:    Staff has provided the attached set of meeting minutes for 

the Board’s review and approval. 

 
Suggested motion:    Approval of the January 8, 2026 meeting minutes  

as presented or as amended.  

 
Requested by: Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk 

Ms. Gjessing, Deputy Town Clerk 

 
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: March 5, 2026 

Agenda Item:   5-A 



Page 1 of 5 

Town of Ponce Inlet 
ESSENTIAL SERVICES ADVISORY BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
January 8, 2026 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Pursuant to proper notice, the meeting was called to Order at 5:30 PM 1 
in the Council Chambers, located at 4300 S. Atlantic Avenue, Ponce Inlet, Florida. 2 

3 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Led by Chairman Cox. 4 

5 
3. ROLL CALL & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: A quorum was established with all 6 
members present. 7 

8 
Board members present: 9 
Mr. Cox, Seat #1; Chair 10 
Mr. McConaughey, Seat #2 11 
Mr. Pulver, Seat #3  12 
Mr. Montgomery, Seat #4 13 
Ms. Valerien, Seat #5; Vice-Chair 14 
Ms. Rij, Alternate for Seat #1 15 
Ms. Evans, Alternate for Seat #4 16 
Mr. Wolf, Alternate for Seat #5 17 

18 
Staff members present: 19 
Attorney Brackins, Town Attorney 20 
Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk/HR Director 21 
Mr. Disher, Town Manager 22 
Ms. Gjessing, Deputy Town Clerk 23 
Chief Glazier, Police Chief 24 
Ms. Hugler, Fire Department Office Manager/PIO 25 
Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 26 
Chief Scales, Public Safety Director 27 
Mr. Wargo, Public Works Director 28 

29 
A. Oaths of Office – Ms. Gjessing administered the Oaths of Office to Mr.30 

McConaughey, Mr. Montgomery, Ms. Rij, Ms. Evans, and Mr. Wolf. 31 
32 

B. Election of Chair – Mr. McConaughey nominated Mr. Cox to serve as Chair; seconded33 
by Mr. Pulver. The motion PASSED by consensus, 5-0. 34 

35 
C. Election of Vice-Chair – Mr. Pulver nominated Ms. Valerien to serve as Vice-Chair;36 

seconded by Mr. Cox. The motion PASSED by consensus, 5-0. 37 
38 

4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA: Chair Cox asked if there were any changes to the agenda; there 39 
were none. 40 

41 

Item 5-A



Essential Services Advisory Board Meeting Minutes   January 8, 2026 
 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 5 

Chair Cox moved to adopt the agenda as presented; seconded by Mr. McConaughey. The motion 42 
PASSED 5-0, consensus. 43 
 44 
5. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: 45 
 46 
 A. April 3, 2025 47 
 48 
Chair Cox asked if there were any changes to the meeting minutes; there were none.  49 
 50 
Chair Cox moved to adopt the April 3, 2025, meeting minutes as presented; seconded by Mr. 51 
McConaughey. The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 52 
 53 
6. OLD BUSINESS: None. 54 
 55 
7. NEW BUSINESS: 56 
 57 

A. Proposed Capital Budget Requests for FY 26/27: 58 
 59 

1. Police Department – Chief Glazier stated the Police Department is requesting to replace the 60 
oldest vehicle in the fleet in the upcoming budget. He explained the vehicle's repair costs exceed 61 
routine maintenance, and provided details regarding its condition. He reviewed the differences 62 
between purchasing and leasing a new vehicle and noted staff will proceed at the direction of the 63 
Town Council to determine the most cost-effective option. Chair Cox opened public participation – 64 
hearing none, public participation was closed. 65 

 66 
2. Fire Department – Chief Scales reviewed the list of capital budget requests in order of 67 

priority. The first item is for replacement of the self-contained breathing apparatus (SCBA) refill 68 
compressor; the next is a second set of firefighting turnout gear; and the final request is for Emergency 69 
Management Operations radio cache. Chief Scales provided details on each request, noting that the 70 
request for the SCBA compressor has now been deferred for several years. He said the list could 71 
change as staff evaluate the department’s needs during budget preparation. Per request, Chief Scales 72 
explained the intended use of the emergency radios would be for an emergency, not full-time use, and 73 
he explained the time it takes to properly clean firefighter turnout gear. The Board inquired about the 74 
number sets of gear requested, and the expected longevity of the gear; Chief Scales stated 15 sets are 75 
being requested, and the gear has a 10-year lifecycle. Chair Cox opened public participation – hearing 76 
none, public participation was closed.  77 
 78 

B. Update for the South Peninsula Drive Sidewalk Project – Mr. Lear provided an 79 
update on the status of the project and outlined anticipated milestones for 2026 and 2027. The South 80 
Peninsula Drive Sidewalk Project involves widening the existing sidewalk within Town limits to 81 
reconstruct it into an eight-foot-wide sidewalk designed to safely accommodate pedestrians and 82 
cyclists. Mr. Lear reviewed project details and provided an outline of the upcoming milestones which 83 
include various meetings with the public, Boards, and Council, and the creation of construction bid 84 
package plans. Construction is anticipated to start in March 2027 and be completed in October 2027. 85 
The Board provided comments and questions, including project location, estimated costs, and 86 
funding. 87 
 88 



Essential Services Advisory Board Meeting Minutes   January 8, 2026 
 
 

 
 

Page 3 of 5 

Chair Cox opened public participation – Mr. Don Bramlage, 4754 South Peninsula Drive, voiced his 89 
concerns regarding the potential damage to landscaping, property values, and the integrity of nearby 90 
homes that the project could cause. Mr. Robert Bullard, 4802 South Peninsula Drive, questioned the 91 
right-of-way delineations on South Peninsula Drive; provided information from a surveyor’s point of 92 
view; and urged the project to be paused until an updated survey is completed. Mr. Michael Lang, 93 
4366 South Atlantic Avenue, questioned who the project manager is and commented on the project 94 
cost. Mr. Nick Amos, 4718 South Peninsula Drive, expressed concerns regarding drainage, impacts 95 
to tree canopies, and traffic hazards. Mr. Mark Oebbecke, 4758 South Peninsula Drive, questioned 96 
the purpose behind the project; urged everyone to reconsider the project details by evaluating the 97 
actual needs of the landowners; and stated the Town should reconsider funding the project. Chair Cox 98 
closed public participation. Chair Cox reiterated that no action was currently required by the Board 99 
and he urged residents to provide feedback to the Town at any time and to attend meetings regarding 100 
the project in the upcoming year. 101 
 102 

C. 2026 Meeting dates and discussion of potential change to Board meeting start 103 
time. – Ms. Gjessing provided the tentative list of meeting dates for 2026 and requested feedback 104 
from the Board on whether the 5:30 PM start time is still most convenient for the members. Chair 105 
Cox questioned whether the proposed joint meeting of the Essential Services Advisory Board and the 106 
Cultural Services Board for the sidewalk project should be added to the list of meeting dates; Ms. 107 
Gjessing stated no date has yet been confirmed, and the Board will be notified once the meeting date 108 
has been set. The Board members briefly discussed the meeting start time, agreeing that 5:30 PM is 109 
still the most convenient. Chair Cox opened public participation – hearing none, public participation 110 
was closed.  111 
 112 
Chair Cox moved to accept the schedule of 2026 meeting dates as presented, with agreement not to 113 
change the Board meeting start time; seconded by Mr. Montgomery. The motion PASSED, 5-0 114 
consensus. 115 
 116 

D. Annual Board Member Training and Form 8-B review. – Attorney Brackins 117 
provided information related to the Florida Sunshine Law and urged members in doubt of compliance 118 
with the law to ask staff for clarification. He said that while most violations are not directly intended, 119 
if someone merely perceives that a violation has occurred, it will be investigated. Under the Florida 120 
Sunshine Law, board members are prohibited from discussing any matters related to current or 121 
foreseeable board business with other members of the same board outside of a publicly noticed 122 
meeting. He explained ways to exercise caution, provided examples of violations, and encouraged 123 
members to avoid any situation that could result in the claim of a violation. Attorney Brackins reviewed 124 
the definition of public records and explained how they are to be properly maintained in accordance 125 
with State law. There was a brief discussion between the Board and Attorney Brackins regarding what 126 
constitutes a public record. Ms. Evans questioned with whom the Board may discuss matters presented 127 
to them. Attorney Brackins explained Board members are welcome to discuss matters with staff, the 128 
Town Council, or members of other Town Boards; they are only prohibited from discussing matters 129 
with fellow members of the Board they serve on. He explained ex-parte communications and 130 
disclosures. Attorney Brackins provided a brief review of the ethical practices expected of Board 131 
members, the by-laws of the Board, Robert’s Rules of Order, and the voting conflict Form 8-B.  132 
 133 
8. REPORT OF STAFF: 134 
 135 



Essential Services Advisory Board Meeting Minutes   January 8, 2026 
 
 

 
 

Page 4 of 5 

 A. Fire Department: Chief Scales reported the call volume for 2025 and stated the 136 
Town’s ISO rating rose from Level 3 to Level 2. He explained that the department’s accreditation 137 
team recently completed a site visit with assessors from the Center for Public Safety Excellence, and 138 
they received a recommendation to move forward to the final step of the process in March 2026. He 139 
stated the 75’ Quint Fire Apparatus was placed in service and reviewed departmental operations with 140 
advancements in data collection, training, and emergency management tools. He provided a personnel 141 
update, noting that interviews will soon be conducted for a new Deputy Fire Chief. Mr. Pulver 142 
questioned the impact of the ISO rating improvement on insurance for residents of the Town; Chief 143 
Scales explained that it has a positive impact on insurance rates and provided a brief review of the 144 
process to achieve a Level 1 ISO rating. A brief discussion was held regarding the Quint Fire 145 
Apparatus.      146 
 147 
 B. Public Works Department: Chief Scales provided an update on the Public Works 148 
department, noting the improvements made to stormwater facilities. He reviewed a list of projects 149 
completed in 2025 and stated the department will continue to focus on strengthening infrastructure 150 
facilities and community spaces in the upcoming year.  151 
 152 

C. Police Department: Chief Glazier stated the department is fully staffed for the first 153 
time in two years, and he provided statistics on the department's calls for 2025, noting the average 154 
response time is 3 minutes. Chief Glazier stated the department is using the Live 911 software, which 155 
allows officers to receive emergency calls directly to their computers so they can begin to triage a 156 
situation without the delay of receiving the call from a dispatcher. He stated the number one goal for 157 
2026 is to keep people safe and slow down traffic.   158 
 159 

D. Planning & Development Department: Mr. Lear provided statistics on the number 160 
of permits issued, inspections completed, and code complaints addressed. He described the technical 161 
memorandum prepared by the Town’s Watershed Master Plan (WMP) consultants, which outlines 162 
regulatory standards, codes, and techniques that mitigate construction related impacts; the 163 
recommendations were approved and accepted by the Town Council in 2025, however, Senate Bill 164 
(SB) 180 currently prohibits implementation of the recommendations. The Town’s Adaptation Plan 165 
is being drafted to address concerns of the Town’s most vulnerable areas, and a special joint meeting 166 
of the Planning Board and the Town Council will be held later in the year to review the project prior 167 
to completion.  168 
 169 

E. Board Liaison: Ms. Cherbano welcomed the new Board members and encouraged 170 
everyone to reach out to the Clerk’s department with any questions or concerns. She noted the next 171 
meeting of the Board is scheduled for March 5, 2026, and stated there are two vacant positions on the 172 
Board.  173 
 174 
9. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: Chair Cox opened public participation – hearing none, public 175 
participation was closed. 176 
 177 
10. ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 6:59 p.m. 178 
 179 
Prepared and submitted by:  180 
 181 



Essential Services Advisory Board Meeting Minutes   January 8, 2026 
 
 

 
 

Page 5 of 5 

Draft      182 
Stephanie Gjessing 183 
Deputy Town Clerk 184 
 185 
Attachment(s): None. 186 



 
 

 
 

Report to Essential Services Advisory Board 
 
Topic:   Review and Recommendation of Capital Budget Priorities for 

FY 26/27. 
 
 
Summary: Police Department Capital Projects and Equipment 

Preliminary Request for FY 26/27. 
   
 
Suggested motion: Approval of each budget item the Board would like 

to recommend to the Town Council for 
consideration in the fiscal year 2026/2027 budget. 

 
 
Requested by: Chief Glazier, Police Chief 
 
 
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: March 5, 2026 

Agenda Item:   6A-1 



Item 6A-1



































 
 

 
 

Report to Essential Services Advisory Board 
 
Topic:   Review and Recommendation of Capital Budget Priorities for 

FY 26/27. 
 
 
Summary: Fire Department Capital Projects and Equipment 

Preliminary Request for FY 26/27. 
   
 
Suggested motion: Approval of each budget item the Board would like 

to recommend to the Town Council for 
consideration in the fiscal year 2026/2027 budget. 

 
 
Requested by: Chief Scales, Public Safety Director 
 
 
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: March 5, 2026 

Agenda Item:   6A-2 



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Office of the Public Safety Director 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael E, Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
From: Daniel Scales, Public Safety Director 
Date: February 19, 2026 
Subject: Fire Department Capital Projects and Equipment Preliminary Request for FY 26/27 

Meeting Date:  March 5, 2026 

This memo identifies the fire department’s initial capital budget request for fiscal year 26/27. The 
capital projects and equipment presented meet the threshold requiring review of the Essential 
Services Advisory Board. This list remains unchanged from original document presented at the 
January 8, 2026 meeting. 

Priority 1 – Replacement Self-contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) Refill Compressor - 
$70,000 

The SCBA cascade system is a mission-critical component of firefighter life safety and sustained 
fireground operations. The department’s existing cascade system is more than 20 years old, was 
purchased secondhand, and is increasingly unreliable. Repairs require extended lead times due to 
parts availability, and the system has been identified by the service provider as being one major 
failure away from condemnation. While current air samples remain compliant, fill times have 
increased significantly, and continued aging poses a growing risk to operational readiness and 
firefighter safety. This item has been deferred from previous requests for fiscal years 24/25 and 
25/26.  

A modern replacement cascade system will restore reliable, rapid SCBA bottle refilling during 
extended incidents, large structure fires, technical rescues, and post-disaster operations. This 
capability is essential for maintaining interior firefighting operations and compliance with OSHA 
respiratory protection requirements under 29 CFR 1910.134, including required inspections, 
functional checks, and emergency air pack readiness. 

This request is further reinforced by the accreditation site visit recommendation that the agency 
evaluate the placement and configuration of the SCBA fill station to ensure clean air intake and 
adherence to current best practices.  

Investment in a new cascade system directly supports firefighter health, regulatory compliance, 
and uninterrupted operational capability during high-risk incidents. 

Item 6A-2



2 

Priority 2 – Second Set of Firefighting Turnout Gear - $53,000 

A second set of firefighter turnout gear is requested to support firefighter safety, health, and 
compliance with established contamination control practices. Firefighters are routinely exposed to 
carcinogens, toxic byproducts of combustion, and hazardous materials. A second set of gear allows 
contaminated PPE (Personal Protective Equipment) to be properly cleaned, dried, and inspected 
without forcing firefighters to reuse compromised equipment or delay responses. 

This request aligns directly with accreditation site visit recommendations to enforce compliance 
with existing contamination and cross-contamination policies. Without a second set of turnout 
gear, full compliance with these policies is operationally difficult, particularly following structure 
fires or multiple incidents in a single shift. 

Prior ESAB memoranda from fiscal years 24/25 and 25/26 have also documented that a second set 
of turnout gear is a recognized best practice under OSHA and NFPA standards, ensuring 
firefighters are never placed in a position where they must choose between safety and operational 
readiness. Providing a second set of gear reduces long-term health risks, extends the service life 
of PPE through proper rotation, and ensures personnel remain protected and available for response 
at all times. 

Priority 3 - Emergency Management Operations Radio Cache – $55,000 

Emergency Management Operations radios ensure reliable and interoperable communications 
during hurricanes, large-scale emergencies, and extended multi-agency incidents. Effective 
communications are essential to maintaining command, control, and coordination between 
Emergency Management Operations staff, field units, Town leadership, and partner agencies. Staff 
is requesting the purchase of ten (10) portable 800 MHz P25 radios. 

As part of the Town’s transition to the new county-wide P25 radio system, it has been identified 
that the radios currently assigned for Emergency Management Operations are not compatible and 
will not function on the new system. Without replacement, Emergency Management Operations 
will lose direct radio communications with first responders and supporting agencies during critical 
incidents. This represents a significant operational and continuity risk, particularly during storm 
response and prolonged emergency activations. 

The establishment of a dedicated Emergency Management Operations radio cache will allow the 
Town to maintain a ready inventory of P25-compatible, properly programmed radios that can be 
rapidly deployed to Emergency Management Operations staff, command personnel, and 
supporting agencies as needed. This ensures communications redundancy and eliminates reliance 
on ad hoc or incompatible equipment during high-stress incidents. 

This request directly supports the accreditation site visit recommendation that the agency develop 
a formal continuity of operations plan incorporating departmental contingency plans. A functional, 
P25-compatible Emergency Management Operations radio cache is a core element of continuity 
planning and emergency management readiness. 



 
 

 
 

Report to Essential Services Advisory Board 
 
Topic:   Review and Recommendation of Capital Budget Priorities for 

FY 26/27. 
 
 
Summary: Public Works Department Capital Projects and 

Equipment Preliminary Request for FY 26/27. 
   
 
Suggested motion: Approval of each budget item the Board would like 

to recommend to the Town Council for 
consideration in the fiscal year 2026/2027 budget. 

 
 
Requested by: Mr. Dunlap, Interim Public Works Director 
 
 
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: March 5, 2026 

Agenda Item:   6A-3 



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Public Works Department 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Essential Services Advisory Board  
From: Steve Dunlap, Acting Public Works Director  
Date: February 18, 2026 
Subject: Public Works Capital Projects and Equipment Preliminary Requests for FY 26/27 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2026 

1. Boat Ramp Repairs - $70,000 (General Fund)

The department is requesting funds for piling repairs at the Ponce Inlet Boat Ramp. A recent 
comprehensive inspection, conducted both above and below the waterline, revealed substantial 
deterioration of multiple support pilings on the east and west piers due to marine borer activity. 

Several pilings have been rated in “serious” or “critical” condition, requiring structural 
reinforcement, while additional pilings require protective treatment to prevent further degradation. 
The proposed work will restore structural integrity, extend the service of life of the facility, and 
ensure continued safe use of the boat ramp for mooring and pedestrian access. 

Timely completion of these repairs is essential to maintain public safety, protect Town 
infrastructure, and prevent more extensive and costly repairs in the future.  

2. Stormwater Improvements - $75,000 (General Fund)

Staff is requesting approval to complete critical stormwater system improvements at the Boat 
Ramp and along Cindy Lane. The project will include the replacement of deteriorated storm pipe 
and two stormwater basins at the Boat Ramp, as well as storm pipe and basin replacement on 
Cindy Lane where significant structural deterioration has been identified in all components. 
According to a recent assessment of all stormwater basins, these were the most critical for needing 
replacement. 

These improvements are necessary to restore proper drainage function, prevent roadway damage 
and localized flooding, and address ongoing infrastructure degradation before failures occur. 
Proactively replacing these stormwater components will enhance system reliability, protect 
surrounding properties and roadways, and support the long-term integrity of the Town’s 
stormwater management system. 

Item 6A-3



2 

3. Radio Read Equipment - $60,000 (Water Renewal and Replacement Fund) 

The Department is requesting approval to purchase and install radio-read equipment on water 
meters along S. Atlantic Avenue. Implementing radio-read technology will allow for remote data 
collection, significantly streamlining the billing process, improving reading accuracy, and 
ensuring more consistent and timely usage data. Currently, staff manually collects meter readings 
each month using handheld wands, which is time-intensive, labor-intensive, and subject to 
potential human error. This upgrade will include the installation of radio read port couplers on 
approximately 100 single meter boxes and 60 double meter boxes, serving all properties along S. 
Atlantic Avenue. 

In addition to operational efficiencies, this upgrade will substantially enhance employee safety. S. 
Atlantic Avenue is a heavily traveled corridor and requires technicians to perform manual wand 
readings along this roadway, which presents avoidable traffic hazards. Remote reading capability 
will reduce the need for staff to work roadside, minimizing exposure to vehicular traffic and 
improving overall workplace safety. 

Investing in radio read equipment modernizes our utility infrastructure, enhances service delivery 
to residents, and represents a proactive step toward improving efficiency, accuracy, and safety 
within the Town’s water system. This upgrade will also bring our metering operations in line with 
current industry standards and best practices for utility management, ensuring the Town maintains 
a reliable, technologically current, and professionally operated water system. 

4. Public Works Vehicles - $87,000 (Split 50% with General Fund and Water Fund) 

Under the previous Public Works crew model, staff were grouped by function and transported 
together in shared vehicles. However, due to current staffing levels, the Department has returned 
to a north-side and south-side crew structure. This operational shift requires crew members to work 
more independently and have access to individual vehicles in order to respond efficiently to daily 
assignments and service calls. Compounding the need for additional fleet capacity, one vehicle 
was previously transferred to the Fire Department, reducing the number of available trucks. 

To address these operational needs while maintaining fiscal responsibility, staff proposes a “fleet 
right-sizing strategy,” involving the purchase of two new trucks. First, we recommend acquiring 
one new Ford Maverick Hybrid to serve in the Public Works Director’s administrative and light-
duty role. This vehicle provides sufficient capability—up to 1,500 pounds of payload capacity and 
2,000 pounds of standard towing capacity—for site inspections, tool transport, and occasional 
trailer use, while offering reduced fuel consumption and lower total cost of ownership compared 
to a full-size truck. The Director’s current F-150 would then be reassigned to the crew to restore 
fleet capacity. Second, the aging 2016 F-250 would be replaced with a new 2025 F-250 XL to 
ensure continued reliability and safety for heavy-duty daily operations. 

This approach preserves necessary heavy-duty capability, restores appropriate fleet availability 
under the current crew model, improves operational flexibility and responsiveness, and reduces 
long-term ownership costs where feasible.  



3 

5. Public Works Facility Renovations - $75,000 (Land Acquisition Fund) 

The Public Works Department is requesting to renovate the existing Public Works facility to better 
meet the needs of our growing staff and daily operations. Currently, we do not have adequate 
locker space for all employees, and the existing break room table cannot accommodate the full 
team. With additional staff positions coming on board this year and next, these space limitations 
will become even more challenging. 

The proposed renovations will create sufficient locker space for all employees, expand and 
reconfigure the break room and kitchen area to accommodate current and future staffing levels, 
and provide normal-sized offices for administrative staff. The plan also includes workstations and 
training space for field personnel to complete required certifications, safety trainings, and 
administrative tasks in a functional and professional environment. 

These improvements will enhance workplace safety, organization, efficiency, and morale while 
ensuring the Department is properly equipped to support continued growth and maintain high 
service standards for the Town. 

This item was first proposed to the ESAB for the FY 24/25 budget, then combined with the revised 
proposal for Building B in the FY 25/26 budget. With the Town Council’s recent direction to return 
to the simplified Building B design as primarily a storage facility, this request for locker rooms is 
to be budgeted and constructed separately. 

6. Roof Replacement - $65,000 – Public Works Roof (General Fund), $55,000 – Community 
Center Roof (Community Center Fund via transfer from General Fund) 
 

The department recently had a professional inspection of the roofs of all Town-owned buildings. 
This inspection included not only the roof surface but also the underlying panels and framing. The 
roofs of these two buildings were in the worst condition, with a remaining life expectancy of 1-3 
years.  
 

A. The department is requesting approval to replace the roof at the Public Works Building with 
a new metal roofing system at an estimated cost of $65,000. The existing roof has reached the end 
of its useful service life and has experienced ongoing wear from prolonged exposure to harsh 
coastal weather conditions, including high winds, heavy rains, and salt air. Continued deterioration 
increases the risk of leaks, water intrusion, and potential damage to equipment, materials, and 
interior building components housed within the facility. 
 
The Public Works Building serves as an essential operational hub for the Town’s infrastructure 
maintenance and emergency response activities. Given the building’s critical function, proactive 
replacement is recommended to ensure continuity of operations, protect Town assets, and prevent 
more costly structural or interior repairs in the future. 
 
Installation of a metal roofing system will provide enhanced durability, improved wind resistance, 
and extended service life compared to traditional roofing materials. This investment supports long-
term cost efficiency, reduced maintenance needs, and improved resilience of Town facilities. 



4 

 
B. The department is requesting to replace the roof at the Community Center. The existing roof 

has undergone prior repairs and is currently experiencing minor granular loss on both the hip, 
ridge, and field shingles. Based on professional assessment findings, the roof has an estimated 
remaining life expectancy of approximately one to three years.  
 
The roof schematic report identifies approximately 9,241 square feet of roof area with multiple 
hips and valleys which increases vulnerability to weather exposure over time. Given the building’s 
role as a primary public facility, proactive replacement is recommended to prevent water intrusion, 
interior damage, and higher long-term repair costs. 

7. Street Paving - $160,000 (Gas Tax Fund) 

The department is requesting street resurfacing of some of the five worst-rated streets identified in 
the Town’s professional roadway assessment: Daggett Circle (Rating 83), Daggett Cove (83), Sun 
Dunes Circle (82), Candlewood Lane (north and south) (80). The intersection at Beach Street and 
South Atlantic Avenue along with in front of 4355 S. Peninsula will be repaved.  
 
The roadways have been identified as having the most severe surface deterioration, including 
cracking, base settlement, and patching issues. Resurfacing these priority streets will address 
structural deficiencies, improve drivability and safety, extend pavement life, and prevent further 
degradation that could result in more costly full-depth reconstruction in the future. 
 
It should be noted that there are roads in worse condition that will be repaved as part of the Town’s 
septic-to-sewer project. The roads listed above are not part of that project and must be repaved 
separately. This work allows the Town to proactively maintain infrastructure, protect its roadway 
assets, and improve overall conditions for residents. 

Thank you for your continued support of the Public Works Department. 



 
 

 

 
Report to Essential Services Advisory Board 

 
Topic:  Report of Staff 
 
 

Summary: Department Directors will provide a report and/or update of 
department projects: 
 

A.  Fire Department – Chief Scales 
 

B.  Public Works – Mr. Dunlap 
 

C.  Police Department – Chief Glazier – At the January 15, 2026  
 Town Council Meeting, the Volusia County Combined 
Operational and Voluntary Cooperation Agreement was 
approved. The staff report from the meeting, and the executed 
Mutual Aid Agreement have been attached for informational 
purposes only. No actions of the Board are requested.  

 
D.  Board Liaison – Ms. Cherbano 

 

Suggested motion:  No action(s) required. 
 
 
Requested by: Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk 
 
 
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: March 5, 2026 

Agenda Item:   8 



1 

Town of Ponce Inlet 
Office of the Chief of Police 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 

From: Jeff Glazier, Police Chief 

Date: January 7, 2026 

Re: Renewal of Volusia County Mutual Aid Agreement 

Meeting Date: January 15, 2026 

Introduction: 
Staff requests approval from the Town Council to renew the Volusia County Combined 
Operational and Voluntary Cooperation Agreement for Volusia County, Florida (Mutual Aid 
Agreement) which expired on January 1, 2026.  Signatures are required from the Town Manager 
and the Chief of Police.  

Background: 
For the past 15 years, the Town of Ponce Inlet and Volusia County Law Enforcement agencies 
have been working under a “Mutual Aid Agreement.”  

Under this agreement, each of the participating law enforcement agencies may request and render 
law enforcement assistance to other agencies to include, but not limited to violations of Florida 
Statutes, natural or man-made disasters, control of major crimes scenes, sporting events, Spring 
Break, motorcycle events, concerts, parades, and incidents requiring utilization of specialized 
units.  

This agreement has been reviewed by the Town Manager and the Chief of Police. It was also sent 
to the Town Attorney for review. This agreement shall continue in full force and effect until 
January 1, 2030.   

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the agreement and requests authorization for the Town Manager 
and Chief of Police to execute the agreement on behalf of the Town.  

Item 8-C










































































	item 5.pdf
	January 8, 2026

	item 6A-2.pdf
	Priority 1 – Replacement Self-contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) Refill Compressor - $70,000
	Priority 3 - Emergency Management Operations Radio Cache  – $55,000




